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STATEWMENT OF WORK REVISIONS
The Statement of Work entitled “Glenn research Center Protective Services Contract” Dated August 29, 2011 is hereby revised as follows:

Paragraph 2.2 is revised to add the following:   “Provide dedicated all hands support to assist with and the management of emergencies, special events, incidents or other major activities.  Also, be prepared to perform emergency duties as assigned.”

Paragraph 3.26 is revised to add the following:  “Provide dedicated communications support to the EOC, EDC, emergency response trailer, or other locations as assigned.  Support shall include testing, maintenance coordination, documentation, set up, operation, and demobilization of satellite phones, high frequency radios, 400 MHz radios, 800 MHz radios, emergency notification system, conference calls, video teleconferencing, radio bridging system, Notify 911 system and other equipment or systems incidental to emergencies.”
PRICING REVISIONS
The following Pricing Structure shall be included in Volume II of the proposal to coincide with the Governments Fiscal Years: 

Phase-In Period:
 March 1, 2012

Contract Base Period:
April 1, 2012 Through September 30, 2012


Option One Period:
October 1, 2012 Through September 30, 2013


Option Two Period:
October 1, 2013 Through September 30, 2014


Option Three Period:
October 1, 2014 Through September 30, 2015


Option Four Period:
October 1, 2015 Through September 30, 2016


Option Five Period:
October 1, 2016 Through March 31, 2017
Section B shall also reflect the above.


ADDED OR REVISED ATTACHMENTS
Attachment N Glenn Minimum Staffing Levels  (Added)
Attachment D Past Performance Questionnaire (Revised)

QUESTIONS/CLAIFICATIONS RFP NNC11ZCH007R
1. Reference: NASA Solicitation #NNC11ZCE006R, Attachment D, Past Performance Questionnaire (PPQ) does not include a first page to identify the Offeror’s contract reference information. 
Question:  Will NASA provide the first page of the PPQ?
ANSWER:  First, the Solicitation Number is incorrect.  The correct Solicitation Number is NNC11ZCH007R.  The Past Performance Questionnaires must be e-mailed to Brian Huth at brian.s.huth@nasa.gov.  If the respondent does not specify the name of the contractor in the e-mail, Mr. Huth will contact the respondent.  The Attached Past Performance Questionnaire (PPQ) Attachment D is revised to include Contractor information.  Previous submitted PPQ’s DO NOT need to be resubmitted. 
2. Reference: NASA GRC Solicitation related documents.  The basic RFP identifies this solicitation as #NNC11ZCH007R and Attachment D (PPQ) identifies this solicitation as #NNC11ZCE006R.
Question: What is the correct solicitation number?
ANSWER:  NNC11ZCH007R.
3. Reference: RFP Section L.7 (5), page 58, states, “The table of contents must list figures and tables separately.”
Question: We understand the necessity to provide a separate listing of the graphics (tables and figures) from the Table of Contents; however, does this mean that the graphics must specifically be identified as either a “Figure” or a “Table” or, can they be identified as “Exhibits” with reference numbers tied back to the corresponding paragraph where the “Exhibit” is discussed?
ANSWER:  Yes
4. Reference: RFP Section L.7 (5), page 58, states, “Where necessary, a cross-reference sheet to other volumes shall be included.” RFP Section L.7 (1), page 57, states, “Each volume listed below shall stand alone and not require reference to another volume.”
Question: Are cross-reference sheets to be included in the proposal?
ANSWER:  Yes
5. Reference: RFP Section L.6(c), page 57, states, “Title pages, tables of contents, copies of contractual arrangements, and the resumes of Key Personnel are excluded from the page counts…”

Questions: 
1) There are a number of Plans called for in the solicitation – e.g., Phase-In Plan, Master Training Plan, Quality Assurance Plan, etc. Will NASA permit the exclusion of these Plans from the page count?
ANSWER:  NO  
2) Will NASA also permit the exclusion of all proposal front matter – e.g., Solicitation to Proposal Cross-Reference Matrix, Glossary and List of Acronyms, etc. – from the page count?
ANSWER:   Yes
6. In Section L.7, Proposal Preparation – General Instructions (1), the Government states, the offeror shall submit the following number of copies: Volume I – Mission Suitability: Original plus 7 printed copies; Volume II – Price: Original plus 7 printed copies plus 1 electronic copy; Volume III – Relevant Experience and Past Performance: Original plus 7 printed copies. 
Question:  When the Government says “electronic copy,” does it want a compact disc 
with only Volume II: Price, or may we include the Mission Suitability and Past 
Performance volumes as well? 

ANSWER:  Compact Disc or Memory Stick/Thumb Drive ONLY
7. In Section L.7, Proposal Preparation – General Instructions (2), the Government states, “Plastic bindings only are requested for the submitted paper proposal information.” 

Question:  When the Government states “plastic bindings,” does it prefer floppy, comb-
bound copies, or standard, white, plastic binders?

ANSWER:  No 3-ring binders.  See Instruction L.7 (2) Plastic Bindings ONLY

 (standard spiral binders).
8. In Section L.7, Proposal Preparation – General Instructions (5), the Government states, “Each volume shall contain a detailed table of contents to delineate the sections and subsections within that volume. The table of contents must list figures and tables separately. Where necessary, a cross-reference sheet to other volumes shall be included. Tab indexing shall be used to identify sections. Each volume shall contain a glossary of all abbreviations and acronyms used with an explanation of each. Glossaries do not count against the page limitations for their respective volumes.” 

Question:  To clarify, the table of contents, lists of figures, lists of tables, and cross-
reference matrices also do not count toward the page limitations of each volume? 

ANSWER:  Yes

Question:  Would the Government like a cross-reference matrix that maps that volume’s 
section to the solicitation?

ANSWER:  Yes

Question:   If so, will that count toward the page count?

ANSWER:  No

9. In Section L.7, Proposal Preparation – General Instructions (3), the Government states that the offeror shall include a completed section B with the proposed amounts in the appropriate spaces.

Question:  Does this include both the tables in B.3 and B.4?

ANSWER:  Yes

Question:  Does the Government want these also to be included in the Price Volume? If 
so, in what section?

ANSWER:  No

10. In Section L.9, Volume II – Pricing Proposal Instructions, the Government provides a table that includes Parts 1 through 8; however, in the instructions on the following pages, Part 6: Proposal Prime/Subcontractor Information Summary is not included. 

Question:  Does the Government want us to include Part 6?

ANSWER:  Yes

Question:  If so, what type of information should we include in this section?

ANSWER:  A summary of the cost between the Prime and the Subcontractor 

11. The Government provides representations and certifications in Section K of the solicitation; however, the instructions do not appear to mention where the offeror should include this information. 

Question:  Does the Government want the prime offeror to complete and include the 
completed representations and certifications in its proposal? 

ANSWER:  Please refer to Section K.3, FAR 52.204-8, of the solicitation for information as to whether or not you are required to include your annual Representations and Certifications. 

Question:  If so, in which volume and section should these fill-ins appear? 

ANSWER:  See Cover Letter and the paragraph that says: “Also, all sections of the RFP shall be filled out in their entirety, and returned with the proposal package.”

12. In Section L.6, Proposal Page Limitations (c), the Government mentions “contractual arrangements.” 

Question:  Does this mean that the Government would like a copy of our teaming 
agreements with our partners? 

ANSWER:  Yes

Question:  If so, in which volume would the Government like this item to be included?

ANSWER:  Volume III “Past Performance”

13. In Section L.10, Preparation of Volume III, the Government states, “The Offeror shall provide a list of all Government or commercial contracts…” 

Question:  To clarify, the Government is not looking for a few references but rather a 
listing, perhaps in tabular format, of many relevant contracts? 

ANSWER:  Yes

Question:  If so, is there a limit to the number of citations and/or associated past 
performance questionnaires the Government would like to receive?

ANSWER:  Yes, Not More Than Three from both the Prime and Subcontractor.

14. In Section L.9, Volume II – Pricing Instructions, Part 2, Other Direct Costs Template, the Government lists “miscellaneous items not classified elsewhere, such as canines.” 

Question:  Are canines required for the performance of this effort, as this does not 
appear to be a requirement in the SOW?

ANSWER:  No, there are no canines required 

15. With regard to the pricing proposal, is it acceptable for the offeror to merge all of the government-provided templates into one Microsoft Excel file?
ANSWER:  Yes

16. In Section K, 52.215-6, Place of Performance, would the Government like us to list our corporate headquarters where the overall program management will occur in addition to Lewis Field and Plumb Brook Station locations?
ANSWER:  No

17. In Section L.9, Volume II – Pricing Proposal Instructions, Part 5, Copies of All Subcontractor Negotiations, the Government states, “Prime Offerors and Major Subcontractors shall perform and provide a copy of a cost analysis of their subcontractors as required by FAR 15.404-3(b). In this FAR clause, it states, “Subcontractor certified cost or pricing data shall be submitted in the format provided in the Table 15-2, or the alternate format specified in the solicitation.” To clarify, we may use the government-provided templates vice providing a separate Table 15-2, correct?
ANSWER:  Yes

18. Most federal clearances require that firms to either be sponsored by another firm or for the company to have been awarded a contract that require those credentials.  Given the fact that this contract is geared toward small businesses that may not have such clearances can the small business submit an RFP and apply for clearance after the contract is awarded?
ANSWER:  No, A clearance is required at time of proposal submission.

19. Is the prime company required to have a security clearance when submitting its bid?
ANSWER:  Yes

20. Is the incumbent trainer certified in FAA and SOFCC?
ANSWER:  The incumbent trainer is certified as FAA but is not certified to conduct FAA training.  He has completed SOFCC training and certified to serve as an adjunct SOFCC trainer.  The offeror is free to propose the provision of additional capabilities for the trainer.
21. Do the incumbent security officers meet all current training requirements?

ANSWER:  The incumbent protection officers and support personnel meet all current training requirements.  The exception is approximately 5% of the personnel who are absent from duty due to disability, military duty or other reasons, and those who are awaiting the next scheduled presentation of training.
22. The RFP cites that Attachment E is the current staffing and vehicles. The attachment says that is the Historical staffing and vehicles. This attachment doesn’t have dispatchers or the shuttle driver. Is this the correct staffing and vehicles?  

ANSWER:  The attachment provided an historical reference to the number of officers.  It did not provide a matrix of all posts and functions and the minimum mandatory hours during which those posts and functions were required to be performed in order to meet minimum performance requirements.   Historical Data does not necessarily indicate a staffing level adequate to meet the staffing or performance requirements of the Statement of Work.

The Glenn Minimum Staffing Levels, Attachment N, represent the minimum mandatory hours during which the indicated posts shall be staffed and indicate functions that shall be performed, in order to satisfy the requirements of the Statement of Work.

Attachment N includes the Dispatcher
The current contractor uses one of the Security Officers, indicated as Area Patrol officers to drive the shuttle as part of their normal duty hours.
23. Section 3.9 sites that the contractor provides shuttle services; are there specific hours that the shuttle is in operation?
ANSWER:  The GRC Protective Services contractor historically has used one of the Protection Officers, indicated as Area Patrol officers to drive the shuttle as a part of their normal duty hours.  Shuttle services are provided during non-duty hours, and 24 hours a day on weekends and holidays.
24. 3.12 Locksmith services. 
Question:  Do both locations require a Locksmith?  Are there specific hours of operation?
ANSWER:  Locksmith services are required, See Attachment N.  In addition, locksmith services may be required on an infrequent or emergency basis during other hours.  Both Lewis Field and Plum Brook Station require locksmith services but the SOW does not specifically require more staffing than the single locksmith as indicated in Attachment N.

25. Section 3.8 cites that the contractor is required to supply badge material such as PIV-11 card stock, pouches, lanyards etc.  Does NASA have an estimated number of badges issued on a yearly basis?
ANSWER:  The PIV-11 card stock will be supplied by the Government.

PIV CARDS 

Average New PIV Cards Per Year (Support Service Contractors & Civil Servants): 250

Average PIV Card Re-issuance due to lost or damaged PIV card: 250

Anticipated PIC Card Re-issuance due to badge expiration in 2012: 250

Anticipated PIV Card Re-issuance due to badge expiration 2013: 1,600

Additional estimated requirements follow, for passes and badges, which are mostly paper credentials:

Lewis Field

BADGES: 12,000

NASA, Non-Government (Contractors), International, Academic, Construction Contractors, Civil Servant Retirement

          
 PASSES: 27,500

Official Visitors, Delivery Services, Service Personnel

           Plum Brook Station:

Visitors Processed: 3,100

International Badges: 280

Temporary Badges: 1,700

Permanent Contractors: 2

Temporary Contractors: 10

Deliveries: 2,000

After Hours: 1,300

The contractor also issues a large number of one-day and short term passes or badges to visitors, and expendable paper badges for conferences and events.  These issuances do not require lanyards but may require badge clips and occasional will require pouches.
26. Have the incumbents undergone the MMPI Psychological evaluation?
ANSWER:  Incumbent Protection Officers have undergone MMPI as required.  Protective Services personnel that are not Security Officers have not undergone MMPI.

27. Section L.7 Proposal Preparation – General Instructions, p 57 of the RFP states the following:

Vol. I – Mission Suitability – Original plus 7 printed copies

Vol. II – Price – Original plus 7 printed copies plus 1 electronic copy

Vol. III – Relevant Experience and Past performance – Original plus 7 printed copies However, p 61 – Part 1: Cover Page/Table of Contents, item #1 states the following:

“The following information shall be submitted on the cover page of the Price Proposal: Volume III: Price Proposal”

Question:  Please clarify which volume is the Price Proposal?
ANSWER:  Volume II is Price 

28. Reference: 2.2 Contract Management, Page 6 of 56, item  #7 states the following:

Discussion: “Prepare and present security awareness, crime prevention, emergency management, and other security briefings.”

Question:  Is this training required for the entire center?
ANSWER:  The contractor is responsible for compliance with all tasks identified in the Statement of Work.  The response which follows is provided as guidance but does not supersede any of the SOW requirements. 

The required audience for briefings and training for which the contractor shall be responsible varies with the type of training.  The types of training, the required audience, the frequency, and in some cases the method of presentation are provided in various sections of the RFP.  Examples:

Emergency Management Deliverable Documents, Paragraph C, pages 45 and 46, C (6) provides for :

 Multi-year Emergency Management Training and Exercise Plan (MTEP).  This plan which is provided by the contractor shall provide the specifics of the program.

Some of the training for which the contractor is responsible may be presented electronically to the targeted audiences by the GRC computer-based Satern training system which presents the training and maintains records.  Examples include but are not limited to the following:

-Annual Security Awareness Training for Clearance Holders : GRC Course GRC-004-11

-Annual Security Awareness Training; course GRC-003-11

Numerous other security and emergency management courses which are specifically identified or identified by reference to documents which provide details of the requirements.  Emergency management training is provided primarily to those with emergency management responsibilities, and not necessarily the entire center workforce.

Paragraph 3.14.2 provides; “Conduct Security Education and Awareness training at least once yearly, which includes developing and implementing annual web-based training to GRC residents and periodic training to selected groups.” 

Paragraph3.20 provides; “Prepare material and present classified and unclassified security education awareness training annually to NASA employees and contractor personnel on GRC security program responsibilities.  Provide special security training to employees related to SCI and MEI, classified document handling, sponsors of foreign nationals, secure communications, and related subjects”.

Paragraph 3.26.2 provides; “Develop and conduct emergency preparedness and response educational programs for agency personnel and on-site contractors”.  The majority of this training has historically been provided electronically and substantive training has been limited to approximately 100 personnel with emergency preparedness responsibilities, 

 “Coordinate training for the ERT, to include table top, functional and full-scale exercises with the emergency elements within the Center and the local community”.
The contractor is responsible for carefully reviewing the SOW for specified training and for incorporating into Deliverables, the contractors plan for implementing those training requirements and those which appear in or are amplified in the References (Attachment 2). The contractor is required to maintain 100% accountability for training for which they are tasked.

Protective Services Contract Deliverables, Attachment 4, section (A)4 provides:

 “Master Training Plan – The Master Training Plan shall be comprehensive and define all training, training methods, records maintenance and control which the contractor provides to their employees, other contractors and Government personnel.  The plan shall include for the provision of individual training plans for all Protective Services staff members, make a distinction between initial and annual/re-qualification and other training.  Categories of training shall include computer-based training, roll-call, in-service training, classroom/off post exercises, drills, and tests. In addition, the plan shall provide for the preparation and maintenance of comprehensive lesson plans.”

29. Reference: 3.3 Response and Actions, Page 8 of 56, item 12 states the following:

‘Provide security escorts for sensitive equipment and property, over-size movements, local security for sensitive meetings, security of incident scenes, and an escort or security stand-by for counseled and discharged personnel.”

Question:  What level of officer is required to perform this task, i.e. supervisors?

ANSWER:  An armed and fully qualified Security Officer or Supervisory Security Officer is required to perform these functions

30. Reference: 3.12 Locksmith Services, Page 10 of 56, item #6 states the following:

“Install locks, lock cores, padlocks, and door hardware.”

Question: Who is responsible to preparing the doors for hardware installation?

ANSWER:  The installation of doors and the boring, cutting and configuration of the doors is the responsibility of the Government.  The Protective Services contractor is responsible for installation or replacement of the locking devices, and cores and related items.  

31. Reference:  Cover Letter, which states the following:

Please note proposals must be received by September 30, 2011, at 1 p.m. EST.

Question:  Given the magnitude of this RFP, will the Government please consider extending the deadline and making that announcement soon to allow offers adequate time to develop a responsive proposal?

ANSWER:  Yes
32. Question: Are there any official Post Exhibits that show Guard Posts, Shifts, Times and # of Guards?

ANSWER:  See Attachment N 

33. Question:  Can Supervisors cover Security Officer’s relief?

ANSWER:  NO, Supervisors shall not be diverted from performing as Supervisors during any hours specified in the staffing requirements of the SOW, in order to back-fill for Security Officer p0ositions or post.

34. Question:  What training is provided by the Government and what training is required by the contractor?

ANSWER:  The Contractor supplies all training unless the SOW clearly states that the training shall be provided by the Government.  The contractor is authorized to utilize the Government SATERN training system to accomplish training for contractor and center personnel for which the contractor is responsible.

35. Reference:  Images on Page 40 of Security Officer show a company shield/patch visible.

Question:  Are company patches or shield with company logo allowed or is the Government saying that there should not be any identifiers of the company name or logo?

ANSWER:  The Government is stating that there will not be any identifiers of the company name or logo on the uniform.

36. Reference:  SO’s Uniform Requirements Pages 40 of the SOW.  Our firm use blue uniforms and we distinguish uniforms via rank and insignia.

Question:  Are gray and white the only acceptable colors for uniforms?

ANSWER:  The SOW provides precise requirements for the type and color of uniforms in Attachment 3.  These requirements are mandatory.  Gray shirts shall be worn by non-supervisory security officers, and white shirts shall be worn by supervisory security officers.  Alternate colors for shirts and pants shall not be considered for normal duty wear.  The photographs on page 40, show the wearing of rank insignia, the US flag, and a NASA patch (specifications to be provided by the Government).  The only Optional Uniform indicated consists of black pants and the gray polo shirt with insignia, and it indicates that this option will be approved by the COTR.
37. Question:  What if vehicles exceed 25k miles during the contract – does the government require those vehicles to be replaced?

ANSWER:  No.  The Government’s requirement is that vehicles brought into service cannot exceed 25,000 miles.

38. Question:  Do dispatchers come from Security Officer Force?

ANSWER:  Yes,  Currently they do

39. Question:  Can either or both Armorer/Gunsmith and Training Manager serve as Firearms Instructor?

ANSWER:  Yes

40. Question:  Can the Training Manager serve as the Protection Services Deputy Program Manager?

ANSWER:  No

41. Question:  Does the contractor provide the Cognizant Individual referenced in the Glossary?

ANSWER:  Yes

42. Question:  Does the duty Security Officer Force provide the non-duty hours shuttle service?
ANSWER:  See Question 24.
43. Question:  Does the Government shuttle van have GPS tracking capability?

ANSWER:  No (not needed)

44. Reference:  L.9 Volume II – Pricing Proposal Instructions, Cognizant Audit Office Template (CAOT).  “The template is designed to capture relevant information concerning the specific location where auditable cost information physically resides that supports the amounts proposed.”
Question:  If a contractor has not had a DCAA audit; what is the Government requiring for this area.

ANSWER:  None

45. Reference: Pricing Volume II – Part 3:  Responsibility Determination Disclosures.

Prime Offerors are required to submit information which demonstrates their financial capability to perform the contract.
Question:  What are types of information would be acceptable to the Government to demonstrate financial capability to perform the contract.

ANSWER:  Bank statements, Cash on hand, Assets held, Irrevocable Letter of Credit and Letter of Confirmation.

46. Reference:  Volume III – Relevant Experience and Past Performance

Question:  If using a major subcontractor or teaming partner; is there a breakdown of applicable Past Performance references required for submission?

ANSWER:  See response to Question 12.

      47.  Reference P. 65 Part 3. Responsibility Determination Disclosures

Question: In consideration of the size standards and set-aside SDVOSB, will the Government provide options or relief to the financial determinations?
ANSWER:  No

Question:   If a Teaming arrangement is in place, to what standards are large business subcontractors held to with financial assistance and/or funding, if any?

ANSWER:  The Same as the Prime
      48.  Question:  The Past Performance Questionnaire does not include a section to identify 

the Contract and contract information to inform the respondent of relevant items.   Will the Government revise the PPQ to include Section I, Contract Identification, Section II Relevancy – Scope of Contract; and the number the current section in Attachment D as Section III as found in similar RFP? 

ANSWER:  See response to Question One above. 

    49.  Question: Will the Government revise the PPQ to include Section I, Contract Identification, 

           Section II, Relevancy – Scope of Contract, and number the current section in Attachment D 

           as Section III, past performance Evaluation as found in similar RFP’s  If not, how does the 

           Government intend for offerors to notify Respondent of the Contractor Information? 


ANSWER:  See Response to question 1 above and Attachment D.

    50.  Question:  Are incumbent employees fully trained, qualified, and certified to perform all of 
           the duties and functions of the new contract?  If not, please specify the type and quantity of 
           the training that is required and the number and type of certifications?

ANSWER:  See response to question 21 above.

   51.  Question:  There appears to be several specially labor categories that may not be covered 

          by the (2) CBA’s such as Locksmith, Personnel and Physical Security.  Are these functions 

          activities handled by union covered Security Officers as collateral duties, If not, will NASA 

          please provide bidders with the prevailing local wage determination?


ANSWER:  The Salary Range for the positions not covered by the CBA is as 

follows:  Range $18.00 per Hour thru $50.00 per hour. 
  52.  Question:  Is the Ohio Peace Officer Training Course (OPOTC) in para 5.4 the 582 hour 
         minimum course described in the Ohio Attorney General (OAG) web site?
         ANSWER:  No.

The required course is the 132 hour Private Security Course, approved by the Ohio Police Officers Training Commission.  This course was formerly referred to as the “120 course”, which referred to the 120 hours of training which were previously specified under the State of Ohio curriculum.  The required training was expanded by the State of Ohio to 132 hours, effective January 2011.

This training may be waived, at the discretion of the COTR for candidates which have held full police commissions, or a recognized higher level of relevant training and certification, as indicated in the RFP.

OPOTC certification is a one-time requirement, prior to assumption of a SO or supervisor SO position.  No OPOTC training or certification, to include Ohio OPOTC firearms qualification is required after the one-time certification.  Training requirements which are specified throughout the RFP are mandatory.

  53.  Question:  If OPOTC is the course on the OGA is the new requirement for this contract or is 
         the current Security Officers OPOTC certified?  And if so, how many?
          ANSWER:  See previous answer.  The OPOTC course is the 132 hours Private Security 
          Course, which previously was 120 hours in length.  All current Protection Officers are 
          certified at the OPOTC Private Security level, or have received a waiver.

 54.  Question:  This question is based upon our belief that there are currently no FAA certified   

        Officers at Glenn. For the one Security Officer per shift that must be FAA certified, can this 

       152 hour course be started upon award of the contract and completed during the phase-in 

        period or is there some other type of extension available?

       ANSWER:   The prescribed number of SOs and supervisory SOs, must complete FAA 
       training, and the prescribed FAA staffing requirements must be met within 180 days of the 
       contract start date.  No further extensions are anticipated.  Questions 53 and 54 are related.  
       For clarity the following information is provided:

OPOTC Private Security training is required prior to hiring, except as indicated in the RFP.  This training does not impart either state or federal arrest authority (Para 5.4).  This training is required for all Security Officers and supervisory Security Officers, under the parameters of the RFP.  Training shall be completed prior to assumption of duty in an armed position as a SO or supervisory SO.

The Security Officer Fundamental Certification Course (SOFCC) is a NASA course which is 80 hours in length.  This course does not impart Federal Arrest Authority (FAA).  All but two of the incumbent SOs and supervisory SO have completed SOFCC, and these officers shall complete the training when they return to duty, or during the next training cycle.  SOFCC training shall be completed prior to assumption of duty as a SO or SO supervisor.
Federal Arrest Authority (FAA) training consists of a prescribed training curriculum, which shall be provided by instructors certified by NASA.  The current course is 152 hours in length.  The RFP indicates the number of SO and supervisory SOs which shall be FAA trained, and indicates staffing requirements. 

The government is under no obligation to grant Federal Arrest Authority to any 
member of the protective services staff.  The FAA training provides the prerequisite 
training, but does not grant Federal Arrest Authority.  Granting of FAA to qualified 
candidates who have completed FAA training is completely at the discretion of 
NASA.   FAA training which is specified in the RFP shall be completed and the 
relevant staffing levels for FAA trained personnel shall be met within 180 days of 
the contact start date.  Less than five of the current contractor protective services 
personnel have completed FAA.

55.  Question:  According to para 5.4 it must be completed prior to employment and prior to 
       hiring.  The exception to OPOTC is for those with current full police commissions, for those 
       that have held a full police commission within one year, and those with documented record of 
       completion of recognized police training which is equal to or superior to OPOTC.  The 
       granting of any exception is completely at the discretion of the COTR.  As to the question “If 
       OPOTC is new or Security Officers are not currently certified, is OPOYTC a condition of 
       employment or can Officers earn certification while working on the contract?”
      ANSWER:  See preceding questions.  OPOTC requirements are not new, and all current 
      protective services SOs and supervisory SOs are certified with the specified parameters.     

      OPOTC certification shall be attained, within the parameters indicated both above and within 
      the RFP, prior to assumption of duty as a SO or SPO.

  56.  Question:  Plastic Binding ONLY are requested for the submitted paper proposal 

         information.  Can the Government please clarify or describe further “Plastic Binding” and/or 

         state whether 3-ring binders are allowed?

        ANSWER:  See response to question 7 above.

  57.  Question:  (b) A page is defined as one side of a sheet, 8 ½ x 11, with at least one inch 

         margins on all side, using not small than 12 point type, Foldouts count as an equivalent 

         number of 81/2 x 11 pages.  Would an 11 x 17 foldout page count as 2 pages?
       ANSWER:  Yes

58.  Question:  In order to determine the wages for specialty functions that fall outside of the security officer CBA’s, have we asked whether all non-exempt personnel are covered under the CBA’s and if not, will NASA provide bidders with the prevailing local wage determination?

ANSWER:  See response to question 51 above.

59.  Question:  Are cross-reference sheets to be included in the proposal?

ANSWER:  See response to question 8 above.

60.  Question:  There are a number of Plans called for in the solicitation – e.g. Phase-In Plan, 

       Master Training Plan, Quality Assurance Plan, etc.  Will NASA permit the exclusion of these 

       Plans from the Page count?  Will NASA also permit the exclusion of all proposal front matter 

      – e.g Solicitation to Proposal Cross-Reference Matrix, Glossary and List of Acronyms, etc. – 

      from the page count?
     ANSWER:  See response to Question 5 above.

61.  Question:  Should the offerors create a separate, fourth proposal Volume to accommodate 
       the completed RFP (ie a “Model Contract” volume”)?

       ANSWER:  No, the completed RFP needs to be a separate file or section in Volume I and   

       identified as such.

62.  Question:  No cost information is supposed to be included in Volume I; please clarify/verify 

       that Section B is part of Volume I.  

      ANSWER:  Section B is part of the RFP and shall be included as part of the Solicitation.  See 

      response to questions 11 &  61 above.  

63.  Question:  In what volume should the offerors submit their Reps and Certs?

ANSWER:  See response to questions 11 and 61 above.
 [END OF AMENDMENT NUMBER TWO]

